
 

Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday September 5th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 
Welcome to the September 5th, 2023, Regular Meeting of The Lyman Board of Selectmen. 

This meeting is a public proceeding and is being recorded. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 

a. Select Board Public Hearing regarding Initiated Referenda 
 
ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 

a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.  
Please use the podium to address the board.  

b. Mail   •Thank you Letter from Lifeflight  • DAR letter 
 
ITEM #3 MINUTES 

a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 8/21/2023 
 
ITEM #4  SIGN WARRANTS  

a. Payroll Warrant #8 in the amount of $23,924.18 
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #60 (FY2023) in the amount of $139,357.00 
c. Accounts Payable Warrant #9 (FY2024) in the amount of $618,031.74 

 
ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a. Discuss updates - Kennebunk Pond Committee regarding automated gate system 
 

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
a. Road Commissioner –  
b. Fire Chief – 
c. CEO –  
d. Tax Clerk –   
e. Assessor – 2023-2024 Commitment Summary & Historic Tax Information 
f. Treasurer –  Expense Report  
g. Town Manager – Progress Report 
h. Other  -  

 
ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 

a. Discussion Shore Rd & discontinuing agreement to pay annually 250.00 for road maintenance, see 
notes 

b. Update contract for plowing of Town Hall 
c. Update contract for plowing of Transfer Station 
d. Review contract proposal for plowing at Bunganut Park 
e. Discuss / vote recommendations for warrant article 2 (Warrant for 10/3/23 town meeting) 
f. Review / Approve order for special town meeting 10/3/23 
g. Discuss YMCA contract for FY2025, renewal is up in October 2024  
h. Review / Approve Town Manager Contract 

OTHER 
 
EXCECUTIVE SESSION 
1.M.R.S.A §405 (A)  for discussion regarding Personnel Matters 
 
ADJOURN 



Town of Lyman 
Select Board 

Notice of Public Hearing 

The Select Board will hold a public hearing on  

Tuesday September 5, 2023, at 6:00pm  

located at the Lyman Town Hall for the purpose of presenting information and 

allowing public comment regarding an initiated referenda question as proposed: 

“To see if the Town will vote to appropriate from surplus the sum of $134,746 for 

the Salaries and Benefits of the separate and distinct administrative positions of 

the Town Clerk and Select Board Clerk” 

The Select Board’s regular meeting will follow after the public hearing. 

A Special Town Meeting has been scheduled to be held on October 3, 2023 

at 7:00pm located at the Lyman Town Hall to vote on said article. 

Lindsay Gagne 

__________________________________ 
Town Manager 
Town Clerk 

Posted August 29th, 2023 

Town of Lyman   townmanager@lyman-me.gov  

11 South Waterboro Rd Tel. (207)-247-0642 

Lyman, ME 04002 Fax. (207)-499-7563 

ITEM #1: (a.) Public Hearing

mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov


Petition Total 134,746.00

Town Clerk SelectBoard Clerk

Per Hr

1950 Hrs 22.57 44,011.50 44,011.50

Fica 3,366.88 3,366.88

Health First 6 7,153.56 7,153.56

Last 6 est 7,868.94 7,868.94

Dental First 6 262.74 262.74

Last 6 est 289.02 289.02

MPERS 10% 4,401.15 4,401.15

 COST 67,353.79 67,353.79

Balance Left 38.42

FOR FY 2025 FUNDING (Estimated)

Town Clerk SelectBoard Clerk

Per Hr w 3% COLA

1950 Hrs 23.2471 45,331.85 45,331.85

Fica 3,467.89 3,467.89

Health First 6 7,868.94 7,868.94

Last 6 est 8,655.83 8,655.83

Dental First 6 289.02 289.02

Last 6 est 317.92 317.92

MPERS 10% 4,533.18 4,533.18

 COST 70,464.63 70,464.63

TOTAL 140,929.26

Valuation FY 2024 648,929,120

648,929.12

MIL RATE INCREASE 0.22

CURRENT MIL RATE 12.19

$350,000 Assessed Value 77.00



ITEM #2: (b.) Mail



ITEM #2: (b.) Mail





Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

Monday August 21st, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 1 of 5 

These are summary minutes in nature only and a full video recording of the proceeding is available to view on our 
YouTube channel at https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams or visit our website: 

https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/ 

Selectboard members present: Rusty “Ralph” Blackington (Chair), Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair), Jessica Picard, 
Amber Swett, Victoria Gavel 
Selectboard members absent: none 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.

Please use the podium to address the board.
Joseph Wagner – Shares information regarding Maine Municipal Bond Bank as an option for funding
municipal loans. This may be an avenue to obtain financing for the Town Hall Expansion. Asks the
board to keep to the original wording of the article as proposed in the citizen’s petition. He asks the
Board to consider using Lyman Elementary as the venue of the special town meeting. He asks for a
sunset date to be set for the interim policy. He mentions at a previous select board meeting an
individual was appointed to a committee whose misconduct he personally witnessed in this room
some years ago and he thinks should preclude any participation in the governance for the Town as a
municipal official.

b. Mail   •Letter from Planning Board    •Letter from Goodwin Mills Cemetery
Reviewed in meeting.

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 8/7/2023

Thomas Hatch – Makes a motion to approve. Jessica Picard seconds the motion.
Motion passes: 4-0-1 (Thomas Hatch, Jessica Picard, Amber Swett, Victoria Gave approve; Ralph
Blackington abstains, he was not present for the meeting.)

ITEM #4 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #6 in the amount of $24,353.49

Amber Swett – Motions to approve. Jessica Picard seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #59 (FY2023) in the amount of $120,683.20

Jessica Picard – Motions to approve. Amber Swett seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
c. Accounts Payable Warrant #7 (FY2024) in the amount of $78,603.74

Thomas Hatch – Motions to approve. Ralph Blackington seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. RFPs for ARPA funded projects. Bunganut Ball Field, Transfer Station, Kennebunk Pond – Discussion,

next steps, Bid updates received for Transfer Station & Kennebunk Pond Beach
Lindsay Gagne – Explains there is a breakdown of different options for these projects. Depending on
which bids are selected the board may have to consider taking additional funds from capitol
improvement or other reserves.
Victoria Gavel – States she has visited the beach and has considered if the ADA ramp would
encroach the beach area given its size and also cautions everything put into place will require future
maintenance the Town would need to consider. She states she appreciates and respects the time

DRAFT
ITEM #3: (a.) Minutes

https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams
https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/


Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

Monday August 21st, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 2 of 5 

and effort the committee has put into this project but also feels the Transfer Station is a high 
priority.  
Thomas Hatch – States we are fully funding the Transfer Station, other than removing the paving 
section to the Salt Shed.  
Priscilla Ouelette – Asks if Town has to provide ADA access when doing renovations to this park.  
Jessica Picard – States this may just be for buildings, but the board could look into this.  
Karen Kane – States the architect had talked to the committee about the space it would take up and 
concluded it wouldn’t be much more than what the existing brush already envelops.  
Ken Burr – States this is electronic and asks who will maintain it for routine maintenance and 
address damages that may occur. The bid does not detail the wiring and excavation for the gate.  
Thomas Hatch – States the issue had been that there was a safety concern because of criminal 
activity. We had someone managing the gate, but safety concerns had come up.  
Karen Kane – Explains this gate will be automated. Lyman residents will have a free pass, others will 
have a paid pass. Fishermen would have a free pass because the pond is stocked. The revenue 
generated would help fund maintenance for the gate. The gate would be unlocked from dawn to 
dusk, unless otherwise determined. If anyone had a pass, the gate would not work outside of those 
hours. You could always get out once you’re in, however. The committee is looking into towing 
parked vehicles on the road. Non-residents could purchase passes at the Town Hall, or they’ve also 
considered getting neighboring businesses involved selling the passes. The DOT offers a $5,000 
rebate for the flashing beacons and will only offer it after we install it and they come and inspect it. 
The quote on the gate was locked in until possibly end of August or October. Knowing that prices 
will likely increase, the committee added an additional $20,000 to cover potential increases. They 
only found one gate company to do work in this area.  
Victoria Gavel – States if the board is in agreement with having the ADA accessibility, she would feel 
comfortable going with the lowest bid.  
Jessica Picard – Motions to award the Transfer Station bid to Dancause Construction based on the 
updated revised bid from July 23, 2023 in the amount of $234,750. 
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 
Lindsay Gagne – Explains depending what the remainder of the ARPA funds comes out to, the board 
may need to determine any excess spending will come out of a different reserve, likely capital 
improvement, and make a motion to authorize spending of that reserve.  
Amber Swett – Asks if the $5,000 grant is applied does it get applied to the ARPA funds. Something 
to check with the Treasurer possibly.  
Thomas Hatch – Motions to award $87,497 for the low bid on Kennebunk Pond Beach with ADA 
access.  
There is discussion of separating the bid price from GT Scapes and the Gate estimate.  
Thomas Hatch revises his motion. 
Thomas Hatch – Motions to accept the bid for GT Scapes of $65,497.12 
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion.  
Jessica Picard – Clarifies this does include ADA access.  
Motion Passes: 4-1-0 (Ralph Blackington, Thomas Hatch, Jessica Picard, Amber Swett in favor; 
Victoria Gavel opposed). 
Thomas Hatch – Motions to award the $22,000 for gate, camera purchase, installation, and 
architect oversight.  
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion.  
Jessica Picard – Asks where the internet will come from for the Gate. And programing cards and 
annual costs.  

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

Monday August 21st, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 3 of 5 

Karen Kane – States they are meeting with the gate company on the 31st to discuss potential 
options.  
Motion passes: 4-1-0 (Ralph Blackington, Thomas Hatch, Jessica Picard, Amber Swett in favor; 
Victoria Gavel opposed). 
Jessica Picard – Motions for the $600 difference to come out of capitol improvement.  
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 
Ralph Blackington – States the O.S.B behind the vinyl siding is getting wet and swelling due to the 
holes in the siding. 
Victoria Gavel – Recommends patching the siding for now and addressing the safety concerns first. 
Jessica Picard – Motions to award item one to repair and replace exterior existing stairs and 
railings to the second floor of the concession stand to BD carpentry for $3,500 funded out of 
Capital Improvement.  
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion.  
There is discussion on the different bid prices.  
Jessica Picard – Rescinds her motion.  
Jessica Picard – Motions to award the bid to remove and replace existing exterior stairs and 
railings to the second floor of the concession stand to KCB landscaping for $3,300 funded out of 
capitol improvement.  
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion. 
Victoria Gavel – States there are some added disposal fees that may change the dollar amount of 
the bid.  
Jessica Picard – Rescinds her motion and asks Lindsay to contact the bidders and have them offer 
a bid on item one in the RFP only.  

b. Review / Approve Code of Ethics
Amber Swett – Motions to approve the Code of Ethics.
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Road Commissioner – none

Jessica Picard – States she has noticed a lot of visible work going on various roads and commends
the road commissioner.

b. Fire Chief – none
c. CEO – none
d. Tax Clerk –  none
e. Treasurer –  Expense Report 8-17-23 – reviewed in agenda packet
f. Town Manager – none
g. IT Committee – Memorandum re: Letter of Recommendation

Lindsay Gagne – Explains there are limited resources for block time usage for IT services, the board
will want to consider and make sure we have budgeted enough funds for additional IT services. We
can ask IT to give us a quote on time and services. MMA Risk Management also offers a grant for up
to $3,000 for safety items that include cameras. We could apply for this grant to help with costs. We
could contact an electrician and ask them to price out their services. At this time, we don’t know
exactly what this would cost and would have to consider where the funds would come out of. The
grant will help with some of the cost.
Jessica Picard – States she would like to have more information before coming to a decision.

h. Other  - none

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

Monday August 21st, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 4 of 5 

ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Review / Approve Warrant for September 11, 2023 Special Town Meeting

Amber Swett – Motions to approve the warrant for September 11, 2023 Special Town Meeting
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

b. Citizens Petition for Warrant Article. Determine Article wording. Schedule Public Hearing
Jessica Picard – Motions to approve the proposed article language for this citizens petition.
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion.
Amber Swett – Verifies the wording has been reviewed by Town Council.
Motion passes: 5-0-0
Jessica Picard – Motions to hold a public hearing on September 5, 2023 at 6:00pm.
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motions passes: 5-0-0
Jessica Picard – Asks if the board would want to schedule the town meeting at the Elementary
school. There is discussion on the different costs associated with using the school. The board agrees
to hold the Town Meeting at the Town Hall.
Jessica Picard – States she recommends having the town meeting at 7:00pm to ensure people can
attend.
Jessica Picard – Motions to hold a Special Town Meeting on October 3rd, 2023 at 7:00pm
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

c. Hold Harmless for S.M.A.S.H Request for waiver of certain items.
Victoria Gavel – Motions to waive section A, C, Article 4, Article 5, and Article 6 for SMASH
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

d. Review Committee Applicant – Comprehensive Plan Committee, 1 applicant
Thomas Hatch – Motions to accept her application.
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

e. Appoint Ballot Clerks for September 11, 2023 Special Town Meeting
Jessica Picard – Motions to appoint Leila Roy, Barbara Hull, Katrina Randall and Irene Single as
Ballot Clerks for the September 11, 2023 Special Town Meeting.
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion Passes: 5-0-0
Ralph Blackington – Motions to appoint Amber Swett and Jessica Picard as Ballot Clerks
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion. Motions passes: 3-0-2 (Ralph Blackington, Victoria Gavel,
Thomas Hatch in favor; Jessica Picard, Amber Swett abstain.)

f. Appoint Land Use Director
Jessica Picard – Motions to appoint Brenda Charland as Land Use Director
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion. Motion Passes: 5-0-0

g. Appoint Administrative Clerk
Victoria Gavel – Motions to go into executive session under 1 M.R.S.A 405 (A) for discussion
regarding personnel matters to talk about the Administrative Clerk position.
Jessica Picard – Seconds the Motion.
Victoria Gavel – States she doesn’t care to discuss any other item except for that.
Motions passes: 5-0-0

Jessica Picard – Motions to come out of executive session
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motions passes: 5-0-0

Jessica Picard – Motions to appoint Rebekah Thompson as Administrative Clerk
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion Passes: 5-0-0

OTHER 

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

Monday August 21st, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 5 of 5 

Amber Swett – States she noticed in the treasures expense report the tipping fees for waste disposal was greater than 
the tipping fees for recycling. She would recommend getting some type of magnetic sign to post on the compactor’s that 
reflects information as to the cost comparison of tipping fees between household waste and recycling showing the cost 
to the taxpayer. She would like to develop some education sessions with the Recycling and Waste Committee, once 
established, to be held at the Transfer station.  
Thomas Hatch – Asks why the boy scouts pulled their bottle collection from the Transfer Station. It’s not determined 
why. They could consider other groups to put a bottle collection there.  
Victoria Gavel – States there should be signage posted there is video and audio recording, so people are aware. 

EXCECUTIVE SESSION 
1.M.R.S.A §405 (A)  for discussion regarding Personnel Matters
Discussed under Item# 7 (g).

ADJOURN 
Victoria Gavel – Motions to adjourn. Amber Swett Seconds. Motions passes: 5-0-0 

__________________________________________ 
Rusty “Ralph” Blackington  

__________________________________________ 
Thomas Hatch  

_____________________________________________ 

Amber Swett 

_____________________________________________ 

Jessica Picard 

_____________________________________________ 

Victoria Gavel 

I, Lindsay Gagne, Town Manager of the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting of 5 pages 
are the original minutes of the Select Board Meeting dated August 7th, 2023 

_____________________________________ 

Lindsay Gagne

DRAFT



ITEM #4: (a.) Payroll Warrant





ITEM #4: (b.) AP Warrant FY2023







ITEM #4: (c.) AP Warrant FY2024











Town of Lyman - ARPA Funds Procurement Policy 

For the purpose policy “Entity” is defined as contractor, subcontractor, successor, transferee, assignee or 

vendor. 

Purchases of $0.00 to $5,000:  

1) A purchase order signed by the Town Manager is REQUIRED prior to engaging in any

obligation with any “Entity”.

2) A copy of the Town of Lyman Maine ARPA Contract/Agreement Addendum MUST be

provided to the “Entity”, signed and the original copy returned to Lyman Town Hall.

Purchases of $5,000 to $10,000:  

1) REQUIRES:   at least 3 competitive quotes in writing

2) A purchase order, with copies of the 3 quotes, must be turned into the Town Manager for review

and signature.

3) A purchase order signed by the Town Manager is REQUIRED prior to engaging in any obligation

with any “Entity”.

3) A copy of the Town of Lyman Maine ARPA Contract/Agreement Addendum MUST be

provided to the “Entity”, signed and the original copy returned to Lyman Town Hall.

Purchases of $10,000 to $360,000:  

1) REQUIRES:   A formal bid

Formal Bid: 

Must be publicly advertised with efficient response time 

Must be for a fixed price 

Must be Complete, Adequate and Realistic 

Must be solicited from an adequate number of qualified sources 

Must be opened publicly 

Must be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder 

2) Upon notification the “Entity” must submit a formal contract to the Town and must contain the

required language as set forth in the Town’s Assurances of Compliance with Title VI of the Civil

Rights Act of 1964 signed on September 16, 2021.

3) A purchase order, with all bid materials, must be turned into the Town Manager for review and

signature.

4) A purchase order signed by the Town Manager is REQUIRED prior to engaging in any obligation

with any “Entity”.

5) A copy of the Town of Lyman Maine ARPA Contract/Agreement Addendum MUST be provided to

the “Entity” signed and the original copy returned to Lyman Town Hall.

ITEM #5: (a.) Kennebunk Pond Beach Project Updates



























ITEM #6: (f.) Assessor Report





ITEM #6: (f.) Treasurers Expense Report 8-31-2023























Town Manager’s Progress Report 

September 5th, 2023 

Please find my progress report concerning various items of interest to the Select Board and 

community.  

Employee recruitment 

The hiring process is now closed, and all vacancies have been filled. We welcome aboard new 

employees at the Transfer Station and at the Town Hall. I’ve met with the department head of 

Tax Collector to go over an onboarding process for our newly hired administrative clerk. This 

role works primarily with the Tax Collector and will also help serve as a floater among other 

departments offering interim assistance when available.  

Policy updates 

The Municipal Code of Ethics has been completed and approved by the Select Board. The 

next phase will include a review of job descriptions and a Personnel Policy which is already 

underway. Municipal Resources Inc has completed draft versions to be modified as necessary 

to fit the needs of the Town. In addition to these documents, I have found other 

municipalities provide a comprehensive guide for volunteers and over the course of the study 

had made recommendations to the board to consider a Lyman Committee Handbook. These 

types of guides serve to combine all laws, charter, ordinances, and personnel policies that are 

applicable to volunteers and aid as a resource for committees. Lyman has many standing 

committees, some of which have yet to be established with active members. I hope to work 

towards developing a core document that may serve to benefit our volunteers. 

Committees 

Bunganut Park Committee has held its first meeting in August. This group will be looking into 

identifying safety hazards, accessibility needs, potential for improvements, revenue 

opportunities, and funding resources through grants and fundraising. This park has loads of  

ITEM #6: (g.) Town Managers Report



potential and the committee realizes developing goals may become extensive. They will 

conduct a site walk of the park and examine safety concerns and items of high priority to start 

off with outlaying potential for future plans.  

Thank you, Amber Swett and Michelle Feliccitti, for helping get the word out soliciting 

volunteers for committees. I am currently working on developing project statements to 

identify the purpose and functions of these committees and as we get volunteers in, will be 

offering my support while they are getting established. I’d love to get more information out 

to the community and have created a helpful pamphlet Amber and Michelle are helping to 

distribute and inform Lyman Residents.  

Building and Grounds updates 

I have met with Custom Concepts for the Town Hall Expansion project. In review of the plans, 

the engineer recommended to first determine any DEP requirements regarding wetlands 

within the property that may affect the project. They will be researching this information and 

making a report of their findings.  

While there has been some feedback regarding the meeting room recording abilities, I am 

currently working with IT to develop a plan that can work with the existing equipment. IT has 

recommended making some simple modifications to the camera positioning allowing a wider 

video frame of the room to capture the meeting in progress. Logistical information is 

currently being collected and analyzed. 

New picnic tables have been ordered and arrived at Bunganut park replacing all the damaged 

tables from severe weather storms earlier this year.  

ARPA funded projects have been awarded as of August 21st. Funding will cover the updates to 

the Transfer Station and landscaping improvements to Kennebunk Pond Beach. Before work 

can begin, there are some necessary forms required for the use of federal funding. I am 

currently working with the contractors in getting these items in place. At this time, scheduling 

of the projects has not been determined and is possible they may need to be scheduled early 

next year. The workload for these two areas is extensive, and it is anticipated there may be 

temporary shutdowns of partial sections while work is in progress. As I am meeting with the 

committees involved, the Transfer Station Manager, and the contractors, we will be discussing 

time management for the work involved, how the project will be conducted, and what 

alternatives may be available, if necessary. Notices will go out to keep the public apprised of 

any temporary changes, once more information is available. 



Elections and Town Meetings 

The Municipal Election to vote for candidates for the vacancies of Budget Committee is 

coming up on September 11th. Polls will be open 8am-8pm. Absentee Ballots are available 

until the close of business on September 6th. Special circumstances will apply for any requests 

after September 6th. The Registrar of Voters will be available September 1st, 5th, 6th, 7th, and 8th 

for voter registrations and to update the voter list during normal business hours.  

A Special Town Meeting is scheduled October 3rd at 7:00pm to vote on an initiated referenda 

article. This will be an open floor Town Meeting. A copy of the proposed article question is 

available on our website and at the Town Hall.  

Coming up in November is the State Referendum Election on November 7th. For more 

information regarding questions appearing on the ballot, visit Maine.gov or click this link 

here. Requests for Absentee Ballots are now available. Request can be made through the 

Town Hall or online at Maine.gov or by clicking this link here for the State Absentee Ballot 

Request Service.  

Updates to the Town web page are in progress to help streamline information on upcoming 

elections and Town meetings.  

https://www.maine.gov/sos/cec/elec/upcoming/index.html
https://www.maine.gov/sos/cec/elec/upcoming/index.html
https://apps.web.maine.gov/cgi-bin/online/AbsenteeBallot/index.pl
https://apps.web.maine.gov/cgi-bin/online/AbsenteeBallot/index.pl
https://www.maine.gov/sos/cec/elec/upcoming/index.html
https://apps.web.maine.gov/cgi-bin/online/AbsenteeBallot/index.pl
https://lyman-me.gov/elections/


From: Mary Ann Uzzi
To: Town Manager
Subject: Re: Slowing easement 119mshore rd Lyman Maine
Date: Tuesday, August 22, 2023 2:24:49 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.png
image004.png

Hi Lindsay,
I have now heard from all the Shore Road Association owners on the dirt road portion of Shore Road.
They have all agreed to this new plan.  By virtue of this agreement, Shore Road Association will no longer
provide maintenance on the part of our road in front of Steve Austin’s property.
Thank you.
Mary Ann Uzzi on behalf of Shore Road Association Owners

Sent from my iPad

On Aug 18, 2023, at 11:20 AM, Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov> wrote:


Good morning,

Just want to follow up from the conversations. It seems like we are all on the same page with the idea the
Town will no longer pay the 250 to the road association but will instead take over the maintenance of the
snow plow damage within the easement with Mr. Austin.

This was a board decision in 2019 and so I will add to their agenda for 9/5/23 for discussion and they can
make a formal decision to go forward with this plan. I don’t see that they would have a problem with
that.

If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me.

Best regards,

Lindsay Gagne

Town Manager / Town
Clerk
FOAA officer
 

11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002

<image001.png>
207-247-0642

<image002.png>
207-499-7562

<image003.png>
 townmanager@lyman-me.gov
<image004.png>
 lyman-me.gov

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which
may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in

ITEM #7: (a.) Shore Road Discussion

mailto:muzzi47@hotmail.com
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
https://lyman-me.gov/






error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

From: STEVEN AUSTIN <austinsd@comcast.net> 
Sent: Friday, August 11, 2023 6:23 PM
To: Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov>; muzzi47@hotmail.com
Subject: Slowing easement 119mshore rd Lyman Maine

Hi Lindsay
So there is the ongoing issue regarding the area beyond our garage 119 shore rd. The
town has an easement. to plow on our property. The issue is to repair in the spring. It
wasn't getting  done by the town so there was an agreement with the road
association, for them to do it. The last to years it has been done by the town, but
the association is still paid $250.  Anyways that money should go to repair of that
section of road.
Regards
Steven Austin
603-781-7891

mnikel
Stamp











Page 1 of 5 

SERVICE AGREEMENT 

PLOWING / SALTING / PARKING LOT & WALKWAY’S OF LYMAN TOWN HALL 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this _5th____ day of ___September, 2023_______________________ by and between the 

INHABITANTS OF THE TOWN OF LYMAN, a municipal corporation existing under the laws of the State of Maine 

and located in the County of York, State of Maine (hereinafter “TOWN”) and David Riley (hereinafter “Contractor”).  

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, after due consideration of the mutual promises made by each party to the other, the parties covenant and 

agree as follows: 

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES

Except as otherwise stated in the Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall furnish the materials, supplies, equipment,

vehicle, facilities, and labor required to provide those services pursuant to paragraph VII, except as otherwise modified by 

this agreement.  

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the professional quality, timely completion, and the coordination 

of all services furnished by the CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. The CONTRACOTR shall, without additional 

compensation, correct or revise any errors or deficiencies in his services. Deficiencies are defined as willful or negligent 

acts that distort or falsify or otherwise fail to comply to the terms of agreement or meet the state of the art of the products 

and services developed and provided hereunder, or willful or negligent non assignment of personnel or assignment of 

unqualified personnel to perform duties hereunder.  

Neither Town’s review, approval, or acceptance of, nor payment for, any of the services shall be construed to 

operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or any cause of action arising out of the performance of this 

Agreement, and the CONTRACTOR shall remain liable in accordance with applicable law for all damages to Town 

caused by the CONTRACTOR’S willful or negligent performance of any of the services furnished under this Agreement. 

II. TERM: AGREEMENT SUBJECT TO ANNUAL APPROPRIATION: EXTENSION OF TERM

The term of this agreement shall be for three (3) years for a period commencing November 1st and be completed

on or by April 30th the following year, each year of this contract, unless sooner terminated as provided herein. The Town 

holds the option to renew contract beyond the three (3) years upon mutual agreement between the parties. The Town holds 

the option to NOT renew for any reason. Each year of this agreement is subject to the appropriation by the annual Town 

Meeting. If the Town Meeting fails to authorize such funding during any year of this Agreement, the Agreement shall 

terminate and become null and void at the end of the last year for which funding has been authorized. The Town holds the 

option to NOT renew the contract on poor performance.  

Required services to be performed shall be completed strictly according to the schedule set forth in paragraph VII. 

CONTRACTOR’S failure to adequately maintain snow removal per this Agreement shall be cause for termination of this 

contract pursuant to Paragraph XII. 

DRAFT
ITEM #7: (b.) Town Hall Plowing Contract



Page 2 of 5 

III. INDEMNIFICATION

CONTRACTOR shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the TOWN, its officers, employees and agents from

and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses (including attorney’s fees and costs) arising out of or resulting from 

the performance (or nonperformance) of the work required under this Agreement and is caused in whole or in part by an 

intentional or negligent act or omission of CONTRACTOR, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by it, or anyone 

for whose acts it may be liable, regardless of whether such claim, damage, loss or expense is caused in part by a party 

indemnified under this paragraph. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or 

obligations of indemnity if that would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this paragraph.  

IV. INSURANCE

CONTRACTOR shall provide the following insurances

Public Liability Insurance (or Commercial General Liability) in the amount of not less than One Million

Dollars ($1,000,000), combined single limit, to protect the CONTRACTOR and the TOWN from claims and damages 

that may arise from operations under this Agreement, whether such operations be by CONTRACTOR or by anyone 

directly or indirectly employed by it. In the event of any amendment to the Maine Torts Claims Act, 14 M.R.S.A §8101-

8118, that increases the limitation of liability of the TOWN under such Act, CONTRACTOR shall increase its amount 

of coverage so that it is not less than the limitation of the liability of the TOWN established under the Act.  

Automobile Liability Insurance in the amount of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined 

single limit, to protect the CONTRACTOR and the TOWN from claims and damages that may arise from operations 

under this Agreement, whether such operations be by CONTRACTOR or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by 

it. In the event of any amendment to the Maine Torts Claims Act, 14 M.R.S.A §8101-8118, that increases the limitation of 

liability of the TOWN under such Act, CONTRACTOR shall increase its amount of coverage so that it is not less than 

the limitation of the liability of the TOWN established under the Act 

Worker’s Compensation Insurance in amounts required by Maine law and Employer’s Liability Insurance, as 

necessary, as required by Maine law. If in the event the Contractor is not required to carry workers compensation 

according to Maine law, then the Contractor must provide the Town with an approved independent contractors status from 

the State of Maine.  

In addition, the contractor must complete and submit a document entitled “Town of Lyman, Hold Harmless 

Agreement” as per Town Policy and submit a W9 form, if not already on record.  

Deductible Amount: The deductible amount in any insurance policy required under this section shall not exceed 

Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) without the prior written consent of the TOWN. 

All such insurance policies shall name the TOWN and its officers, agents, and employees as additional insureds, 

except that purpose of Workers’ Compensation Insurance, CONTRACTOR instead may provide a written waiver of 

subrogation rights against the TOWN, as permitted by Maine law. All insurance policies shall be issued by companies 

authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Maine, shall be in form satisfactory to the TOWN and shall 

contain a provision prohibiting cancellation except upon at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the TOWN and 

shall contain a complete waiver by the insurer of subrogation against the TOWN. All such insurance policies will be 

primary in the event of a loss arising from CONTRACTOR’S performance and shall provide that where there is more 

than one insured, the policy will operate, except for the limitations of liability, as if there were a separate policy covering 

each insured. CONTRACTOR shall not commence work under the Agreement until it has obtained all insurance 

coverages required under this subparagraph and any insurance policies have been approved by the TOWN.  

DRAFT



Page 3 of 5 

All such insurance policies shall have a retroactive date which is earlier of the date of the Agreement between the 

parties or CONTRACTOR’S commencement of services hereunder. 

V. VEHICLES

All vehicles utilized by the CONTRACTOR in the performance of services under this Agreement shall be

licensed in the State of Maine and shall be operated by drivers with the required State of Maine driver’s licenses. Each 

vehicle shall comply with all applicable state, local and federal regulations. Vehicles and other equipment shall be kept in 

good repair.   

VI. PERMITS AND LICENSES

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the cost, acquisition and maintenance of any permits or licenses

necessary for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

VII. SERVICES AND EQUIPMENT PROVIDED BY CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR will furnish all vehicles, materials, personnel, tools, and equipment, except as otherwise

specified herein, and do everything necessary and proper to satisfactorily perform the Services required by this Agreement 

including staking out the grass areas at Town Hall prior to snow plowing.  

CONTRACTOR shall conduct work so as to interfere as little as possible with Town Hall business. Initial snow 

removal to commence at 3” and every 3” thereafter and will be completed 30 minutes before start of business and 

continue through business hours. After business hours and weekends, snow may accumulate to 6” and will be removed 30 

minutes before start of business. Final clean-up will be done after each snow storm. Snow banks will be pushed back as 

necessary. Salting will be to bare lot. CONTRACTOR shall complete shoveling and salting of walkways and all 

entrances at time of plowing.  

VIII. CONTRACT PRICE

The OWNER shall pay the CONTRACTOR for the performance of services under this Agreement the sum of $4,700 

(the “Contract Price”). OWNER will provide the CONTRACTOR salt for salting the Town Hall only by 

CONTRACTOR 

IX. PAYMENT

CONTRACTOR shall submit for OWNER’s Approval, an invoice for Services performed. The OWNER shall pay the 

CONTRACTOR such approved amount in equal payments on the first accounts payable warrant beginning November 

through final payment in April. Final payment in April will be withheld until any damage to the grass and gardens areas 

have been repaired by CONTRACTOR, and repair is acceptable by the Town of Lyman Select Board at the Town Hall. 

Payments due and unpaid under this Agreement shall bear interest from the date payment is due at the maximum rate 

permitted under Maine law at the time of the delinquency for unpaid municipal taxes.  

X. ASSIGNMENT

Neither party to the contract shall assign the Agreement without the written consent of the other.

CONTRACTOR shall not assign any monies due or to become due to it hereunder without the previous written consent 

of the TOWN.  

DRAFT



Page 4 of 5 

XI. DISPUTES

Except as otherwise agreed by the parties in writing, all disputes, claims, counterclaims, and other matters in

question between CONTRACTOR and TOWN arising out of or relating to the Agreement shall be decided by a Maine 

court of competent jurisdiction. This Agreement is made and shall be construed under the laws of the State of Maine. 

Except as otherwise expressly agreed by the parties exclusive venue for any such civil action shall be in York County, 

Maine 

XII. TERMINATION

Either party may terminate this contract without cause upon ninety (90) days prior written notice to the other

party. In the event of such termination, TOWN shall pay CONTRACTOR for all work satisfactorily performed prior to 

the actual termination. Furthermore, if the CONTRACTOR fails to perform according to the terms of this contract at the 

time and in the manner specified, TOWN shall have all legal and equitable remedies including termination for cause 

effective immediately upon written notice to CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR will be paid for all work which is 

satisfactorily done by that time and TOWN shall have no obligation or liability to CONTRACTOR for any remaining 

balance or compensation under the contract.  

XIII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for compliance with all applicable local, state, and federal laws and

regulations, and any applicable amendments thereto. 

XIV. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: AMENDMENTS

This Agreement and its Exhibits represent and contain the entire agreement between the parties. Any amendments

to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be signed by each part hereto. 

XV. NON-WAIVER

Failure of a party to this Agreement to enforce a provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of the

right to enforce any subsequent breach of that provision or any other provision of the Agreement. 

XVI. NOTICES

Any notices required under the terms of this Agreement shall be sent via United States mail, postage pre-paid,

first class, return receipt requested, to the following: 

TOWN: Lyman Select Board 

Town of Lyman 

11 South Waterboro Rd 

Lyman, ME 04002 

CONTRACTOR: David Riley 

DBA D&C Rubbish Removal 

P.O. Box 456 

DRAFT



Page 5 of 5 

Alfred, ME  04002 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said INHABITANTS OF THE TOWN OF LYMAN has caused this 

agreement to be signed and sealed by its Select Board hereunto duly authorized, and DAVID RILEY has 

caused this Agreement to be signed and sealed by DAVID RILEY hereunto duly authorized, the day and date 

first above written.  

_________________________________ 

Ralph Blackington, Chair 

_________________________________ 

Thomas Hatch, Vice Chair 

_________________________________ 

Jessica Picard  

_________________________________ 

Victoria Gavel 

_________________________________ 

Amber Swett 

_________________________________ 

Date 

________________________________ ________________________________ 

David Riley  Witness 

Owner__________________________ ________________________________ 

Position  Date 

DRAFT



Page 1 of 5 

SERVICE AGREEMENT 

PLOWING / SALTING OF LYMAN TRANSFER STATION 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this 5th  day of September 2023 by and between the INHABITANTS OF THE TOWN 

OF LYMAN, a municipal corporation existing under the laws of the State of Maine and located in the County of York, 

State of Maine (hereinafter “TOWN”) and Tibbetts Farms LLC (hereinafter “Contractor”).  

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, after due consideration of the mutual promises made by each party to the other, the parties covenant and 

agree as follows: 

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES

Except as otherwise stated in the Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall furnish the materials, supplies, equipment,

vehicle, facilities, and labor required to provide those services pursuant to paragraph VII, except as otherwise modified by 

this agreement.  

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the professional quality, timely completion, and the coordination 

of all services furnished by the CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. The CONTRACTOR shall, without additional 

compensation, correct or revise any errors or deficiencies in his services. Deficiencies are defined as willful or negligent 

acts that distort or falsify or otherwise fail to comply to the terms of agreement or meet the state of the art of the products 

and services developed and provided hereunder, or willful or negligent non assignment of personnel or assignment of 

unqualified personnel to perform duties hereunder.  

Neither Town’s review, approval, or acceptance of, nor payment for, any of the services shall be construed to 

operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or any cause of action arising out of the performance of this 

Agreement, and the CONTRACTOR shall remain liable in accordance with applicable law for all damages to Town 

caused by the CONTRACTOR’S willful or negligent performance of any of the services furnished under this Agreement. 

II. TERM: AGREEMENT SUBJECT TO ANNUAL APPROPRIATION: EXTENSION OF TERM

The term of this agreement shall be for three (3) years for a period commencing November 1st and be completed

on or by April 30th the following year, each year of this contract, unless sooner terminated as provided herein. The Town 

holds the option to renew contract beyond the three (3) years upon mutual agreement between the parties. The Town holds 

the option to NOT renew for any reason. Each year of this agreement is subject to the appropriation by the annual Town 

Meeting. If the Town Meeting fails to authorize such funding during any year of this Agreement, the Agreement shall 

terminate and become null and void at the end of the last year for which funding has been authorized. The Town holds the 

option to NOT renew the contract on poor performance.  

Required services to be performed shall be completed strictly according to the schedule set forth in paragraph VII. 

CONTRACTOR’S failure to adequately maintain snow removal per this Agreement shall be cause for termination of this 

contract pursuant to Paragraph XII.  

DRAFT
ITEM #7: (c.) Transfer Station Plowing Contract



Page 2 of 5 

III. INDEMNIFICATION

CONTRACTOR shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the TOWN, its officers, employees and agents from

and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses (including attorney’s fees and costs) arising out of or resulting from 

the performance (or nonperformance) of the work required under this Agreement and is caused in whole or in part by an 

intentional or negligent act or omission of CONTRACTOR, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by it, or anyone 

for whose acts it may be liable, regardless of whether such claim, damage, loss or expense is caused in part by a party 

indemnified under this paragraph. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or 

obligations of indemnity if that would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this paragraph.  

IV. INSURANCE

CONTRACTOR shall provide the following insurances

Public Liability Insurance (or Commercial General Liability) in the amount of not less than One Million

Dollars ($1,000,000), combined single limit, to protect the CONTRACTOR and the TOWN from claims and damages 

that may arise from operations under this Agreement, whether such operations be by CONTRACTOR or by anyone 

directly or indirectly employed by it. In the event of any amendment to the Maine Torts Claims Act, 14 M.R.S.A §8101-

8118, that increases the limitation of liability of the TOWN under such Act, CONTRACTOR shall increase its amount 

of coverage so that it is not less than the limitation of the liability of the TOWN established under the Act.  

Automobile Liability Insurance in the amount of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined 

single limit, to protect the CONTRACTOR and the TOWN from claims and damages that may arise from operations 

under this Agreement, whether such operations be by CONTRACTOR or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by 

it. In the event of any amendment to the Maine Torts Claims Act, 14 M.R.S.A §8101-8118, that increases the limitation of 

liability of the TOWN under such Act, CONTRACTOR shall increase its amount of coverage so that it is not less than 

the limitation of the liability of the TOWN established under the Act 

Worker’s Compensation Insurance in amounts required by Maine law and Employer’s Liability Insurance, as 

necessary, as required by Maine law. If in the event the Contractor is not required to carry workers compensation 

according to Maine law, then the Contractor must provide the Town with an approved independent contractors status from 

the State of Maine.  

In addition, the contractor must complete and submit a document entitled “Town of Lyman, Hold Harmless 

Agreement” as per Town Policy and submit a W9 form, if not already on record.  

Deductible Amount: The deductible amount in any insurance policy required under this section shall not exceed 

Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) without the prior written consent of the TOWN. 

All such insurance policies shall name the TOWN and its officers, agents, and employees as additional insureds, 

except that purpose of Workers’ Compensation Insurance, CONTRACTOR instead may provide a written waiver of 

subrogation rights against the TOWN, as permitted by Maine law. All insurance policies shall be issued by companies 

authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Maine, shall be in form satisfactory to the TOWN and shall 

contain a provision prohibiting cancellation except upon at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the TOWN and 

shall contain a complete waiver by the insurer of subrogation against the TOWN. All such insurance policies will be 

primary in the event of a loss arising from CONTRACTOR’S performance and shall provide that where there is more 

than one insured, the policy will operate, except for the limitations of liability, as if there were a separate policy covering 

each insured. CONTRACTOR shall not commence work under the Agreement until it has obtained all insurance 

coverages required under this subparagraph and any insurance policies have been approved by the TOWN.  

DRAFT



Page 3 of 5 

All such insurance policies shall have a retroactive date which is earlier of the date of the Agreement between the 

parties or CONTRACTOR’S commencement of services hereunder. 

V. VEHICLES

All vehicles utilized by the CONTRACTOR in the performance of services under this Agreement shall be

licensed in the State of Maine and shall be operated by drivers with the required State of Maine driver’s licenses. Each 

vehicle shall comply with all applicable state, local and federal regulations. Vehicles and other equipment shall be kept in 

good repair.   

VI. PERMITS AND LICENSES

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the cost, acquisition and maintenance of any permits or licenses

necessary for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

VII. SERVICES AND EQUIPMENT PROVIDED BY CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR will furnish all vehicles, materials, personnel, tools, and equipment, except as otherwise

specified herein, and do everything necessary and proper to satisfactorily perform the Services required by this 

Agreement. 

CONTRACTOR shall conduct work so as to interfere as little as possible with Transfer Station business. Initial 

snow removal to commence at 3” and every 3” thereafter and will be completed 30 minutes before start of business and 

continue through business hours. After business hours and weekends, snow may accumulate to 6” and will be removed 30 

minutes before start of business. Final clean-up will be done after each snow storm. Snow banks will be pushed back as 

necessary. Salting will be to bare lot.  

VIII. CONTRACT PRICE

The OWNER shall pay the CONTRACTOR for the performance of services under this Agreement the sum of $3,000 

(the “Contract Price”). OWNER will provide the CONTRACTOR salt for salting the Transfer Station only by 

CONTRACTOR 

IX. PAYMENT

CONTRACTOR shall submit for OWNER’s Approval, an invoice for Services performed. The OWNER shall pay the 

CONTRACTOR such approved amount in equal payments on the first accounts payable warrant beginning November 

through final payment in April. Payments due and unpaid under this Agreement shall bear interest from the date payment 

is due at the maximum rate permitted under Maine law at the time of the delinquency for unpaid municipal taxes.  

X. ASSIGNMENT

Neither party to the contact shall assign the Agreement without the written consent of the other. CONTRACTOR

shall not assign any monies due or to become due to it hereunder without the previous written consent of the TOWN. 

XI. DISPUTES

Except as otherwise agreed by the parties in writing, all disputes, claims, counterclaims, and other matters in

question between CONTRACTOR and TOWN arising out of or relating to the Agreement shall be decided by a Maine 

court of competent jurisdiction. This Agreement is made and shall be construed under the laws of the State of Maine. 

DRAFT



Page 4 of 5 

Except as otherwise expressly agreed by the parties exclusive venue for any such civil action shall be in York County, 

Maine 

XII. TERMINATION

Either party may terminate this contract without cause upon ninety (90) days prior written notice to the other

party. In the event of such termination, TOWN shall pay CONTRACTOR for all work satisfactorily performed prior to 

the actual termination. Furthermore, if the CONTRACTOR fails to perform according to the terms of this contract at the 

time and in the manner specified, TOWN shall have all legal and equitable remedies including termination for cause 

effective immediately upon written notice to CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR will be paid for all work which is 

satisfactorily done by that time and TOWN shall have no obligation or liability to CONTRACTOR for any remaining 

balance or compensation under the contract.  

XIII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for compliance with all applicable local, state, and federal laws and

regulations, and any applicable amendments thereto. 

XIV. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: AMENDMENTS

This Agreement and its Exhibits represent and contain the entire agreement between the parties. Any amendments

to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be signed by each part hereto. 

XV. NON-WAIVER

Failure of a party to this Agreement to enforce a provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of the

right to enforce any subsequent breach of that provision or any other provision of the Agreement. 

XVI. NOTICES

Any notices required under the terms of this Agreement shall be sent via United States mail, postage pre-paid,

first class, return receipt requested, to the following: 

TOWN: Lyman Select Board 

Town of Lyman 

11 South Waterboro Rd 

Lyman, ME 04002 

CONTRACTOR: Tibbetts Farms LLC 

53 Swetts Lane 

Lyman, ME 04002 DRAFT



Page 5 of 5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said INHABITANTS OF THE TOWN OF LYMAN has caused this 

agreement to be signed and sealed by its Select Board hereunto duly authorized, and TIBBETTS FARMS 

LLC has caused this Agreement to be signed and sealed by TIBBETTS FARMS LLC hereunto duly 

authorized, the day and date first above written.  

_________________________________ 

Ralph Blackington, Chair 

_________________________________ 

Thomas Hatch, Vice Chair 

_________________________________ 

Jessica Picard 

_________________________________ 

Victoria Gavel 

_________________________________ 

Amber Swett 

_________________________________ 

Date 

________________________________ ________________________________ 

Contractor Witness 

________________________________ ________________________________ 

Position  Date 

DRAFT



Page 1 of 5 

SERVICE AGREEMENT 

PLOWING / SALTING OF BUNGANUT PARK LAKE SIDE PARKING AREA 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this 5th  day of September, 2023 by and between the INHABITANTS OF THE TOWN 

OF LYMAN, a municipal corporation existing under the laws of the State of Maine and located in the County of York, 

State of Maine (hereinafter “TOWN”) and Tibbetts Farm LLC (hereinafter “Contractor”).  

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, after due consideration of the mutual promises made by each party to the other, the parties covenant and 

agree as follows: 

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES

Except as otherwise stated in the Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall furnish the materials, supplies, equipment,

vehicle, facilities, and labor required to provide those services pursuant to paragraph VII, except as otherwise modified by 

this agreement.  

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the professional quality, timely completion, and the coordination 

of all services furnished by the CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. The CONTRACOTR shall, without additional 

compensation, correct or revise any errors or deficiencies in his services. Deficiencies are defined as willful or negligent 

acts that distort or falsify or otherwise fail to comply to the terms of agreement or meet the state of the art of the products 

and services developed and provided hereunder, or willful or negligent non assignment of personnel or assignment of 

unqualified personnel to perform duties hereunder.  

Neither Town’s review, approval, or acceptance of, nor payment for, any of the services shall be construed to 

operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or any cause of action arising out of the performance of this 

Agreement, and the CONTRACTOR shall remain liable in accordance with applicable law for all damages to Town 

caused by the CONTRACTOR’S willful or negligent performance of any of the services furnished under this Agreement. 

II. TERM: AGREEMENT SUBJECT TO ANNUAL APPROPRIATION: EXTENSION OF TERM

The term of this agreement shall be for three (3) years for a period commencing November 1st and be completed

on or by April 30th the following year, each year of this contract, unless sooner terminated as provided herein. The Town 

holds the option to renew contract beyond the three (3) years upon mutual agreement between the parties. The Town holds 

the option to NOT renew for any reason. Each year of this agreement is subject to the appropriation by the annual Town 

Meeting. If the Town Meeting fails to authorize such funding during any year of this Agreement, the Agreement shall 

terminate and become null and void at the end of the last year for which funding has been authorized. The Town holds the 

option to NOT renew the contract on poor performance.  

Required services to be performed shall be completed strictly according to the schedule set forth in paragraph VII. 

CONTRACTOR’S failure to adequately maintain snow removal per this Agreement shall be cause for termination of this 

contract pursuant to Paragraph XII.  

DRAFT
ITEM #7: (d.) Plawing Contract Bunganut Park



Page 2 of 5 

III. INDEMNIFICATION

CONTRACTOR shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the TOWN, its officers, employees and agents from

and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses (including attorney’s fees and costs) arising out of or resulting from 

the performance (or nonperformance) of the work required under this Agreement and is caused in whole or in part by an 

intentional or negligent act or omission of CONTRACTOR, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by it, or anyone 

for whose acts it may be liable, regardless of whether such claim, damage, loss or expense is caused in part by a party 

indemnified under this paragraph. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or 

obligations of indemnity if that would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this paragraph.  

IV. INSURANCE

CONTRACTOR shall provide the following insurances

Public Liability Insurance (or Commercial General Liability) in the amount of not less than One Million

Dollars ($1,000,000), combined single limit, to protect the CONTRACTOR and the TOWN from claims and damages 

that may arise from operations under this Agreement, whether such operations be by CONTRACTOR or by anyone 

directly or indirectly employed by it. In the event of any amendment to the Maine Torts Claims Act, 14 M.R.S.A §8101-

8118, that increases the limitation of liability of the TOWN under such Act, CONTRACTOR shall increase its amount 

of coverage so that it is not less than the limitation of the liability of the TOWN established under the Act.  

Automobile Liability Insurance in the amount of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined 

single limit, to protect the CONTRACTOR and the TOWN from claims and damages that may arise from operations 

under this Agreement, whether such operations be by CONTRACTOR or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by 

it. In the event of any amendment to the Maine Torts Claims Act, 14 M.R.S.A §8101-8118, that increases the limitation of 

liability of the TOWN under such Act, CONTRACTOR shall increase its amount of coverage so that it is not less than 

the limitation of the liability of the TOWN established under the Act 

Worker’s Compensation Insurance in amounts required by Maine law and Employer’s Liability Insurance, as 

necessary, as required by Maine law. If in the event the Contractor is not required to carry workers compensation 

according to Maine law, then the Contractor must provide the Town with an approved independent contractors status from 

the State of Maine.  

In addition, the contractor must complete and submit a document entitled “Town of Lyman, Hold Harmless 

Agreement” as per Town Policy and submit a W9 form, if not already on record.  

Deductible Amount: The deductible amount in any insurance policy required under this section shall not exceed 

Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) without the prior written consent of the TOWN. 

All such insurance policies shall name the TOWN and its officers, agents, and employees as additional insureds, 

except that purpose of Workers’ Compensation Insurance, CONTRACTOR instead may provide a written waiver of 

subrogation rights against the TOWN, as permitted by Maine law. All insurance policies shall be issued by companies 

authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Maine, shall be in form satisfactory to the TOWN and shall 

contain a provision prohibiting cancellation except upon at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the TOWN and 

shall contain a complete waiver by the insurer of subrogation against the TOWN. All such insurance policies will be 

primary in the event of a loss arising from CONTRACOR’S performance and shall provide that where there is more than 

one insured, the policy will operate, except for the limitations of liability, as if there were a separate policy covering each 

insured. CONTRACTOR shall not commence work under the Agreement until it has obtained all insurance coverages 

required under this subparagraph and any insurance policies have been approved by the TOWN.  

DRAFT



Page 3 of 5 

All such insurance policies shall have a retroactive date which is earlier of the date of the Agreement between the 

parties or CONTRACTOR’S commencement of services hereunder. 

V. VEHICLES

All vehicles utilized by the CONTRACTOR in the performance of services under this Agreement shall be

licensed in the State of Maine and shall be operated by drivers with the required State of Maine driver’s licenses. Each 

vehicle shall comply with all applicable state, local and federal regulations. Vehicles and other equipment shall be kept in 

good repair.   

VI. PERMITS AND LICENSES

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the cost, acquisition and maintenance of any permits or licenses

necessary for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

VII. SERVICES AND EQUIPMENT PROVIDED BY CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR will furnish all vehicles, materials, personnel, tools, and equipment, except as otherwise

specified herein, and do everything necessary and proper to satisfactorily perform the Services required by this 

Agreement. 

CONTRACTOR shall conduct work so as to interfere as little as possible with Bunganut Park Lake Side area. 

Initial snow removal to commence at 3” and every 3” thereafter. Final clean-up will be done after each snowstorm. 

Snowbanks will be pushed back as necessary. Under circumstances of an ice storm/ freezing rain conditions, sanding will 

be done to bare lot. Parking area will be cleared to preferences suitable for a maximum of six parking spaces and a 

turnaround. For larger events requiring additional parking spaces, CONTRACTOR shall be notified by the TOWN in 

advanced anticipation of such needs.  

VIII. CONTRACT PRICE

The OWNER shall pay the CONTRACTOR for the performance of services under this Agreement the sum of $700.00 

per year (the “Contract Price”). OWNER will provide the CONTRACTOR salt for salting the Bunganut Park Lake Side 

parking area only by CONTRACTOR 

IX. PAYMENT

CONTRACTOR shall submit for OWNER’s approval, an invoice for services performed. The OWNER shall pay the 

CONTRACTOR such approved amount in equal payments on the first accounts payable warrant beginning November 

through final payment in April. Payments due and unpaid under this Agreement shall bear interest from the date payment 

is due at the maximum rate permitted under Maine law at the time of the delinquency for unpaid municipal taxes.  

X. ASSIGNMENT

Neither party to the contact shall assign the Agreement without the written consent of the other. CONTRACTOR

shall not assign any monies due or to become due to it hereunder without the previous written consent of the TOWN. 

XI. DISPUTES

Except as otherwise agreed by the parties in writing, all disputes, claims, counterclaims, and other matters in

question between CONTRACTOR and TOWN arising out of or relating to the Agreement shall be decided by a Maine 

DRAFT



Page 4 of 5 

court of competent jurisdiction. This Agreement is made and shall be construed under the laws of the State of Maine. 

Except as otherwise expressly agreed by the parties exclusive venue for any such civil action shall be in York County, 

Maine 

XII. TERMINATION

Either party may terminate this contract without cause upon ninety (90) days prior written notice to the other

party. In the event of such termination, TOWN shall pay CONTRACTOR for all work satisfactorily performed prior to 

the actual termination. Furthermore, if the CONTRACTOR fails to perform according to the terms of this contract at the 

time and in the manner specified, TOWN shall have all legal and equitable remedies including termination for cause 

effective immediately upon written notice to CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR will be paid for all work which is 

satisfactorily done by that time and TOWN shall have no obligation or liability to CONTRACTOR for any remaining 

balance or compensation under the contract.  

XIII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for compliance with all applicable local, state, and federal laws and

regulations, and any applicable amendments thereto. 

XIV. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: AMENDMENTS

This Agreement and its Exhibits represent and contain the entire agreement between the parties. Any amendments

to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be signed by each part hereto. 

XV. NON-WAIVER

Failure of a party to this Agreement to enforce a provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of the

right to enforce any subsequent breach of that provision or any other provision of the Agreement. 

XVI. NOTICES

Any notices required under the terms of this Agreement shall be sent via United States mail, postage pre-paid,

first class, return receipt requested, to the following: 

TOWN: Lyman Select Board 

Town of Lyman 

11 South Waterboro Rd 

Lyman, ME 04002 

CONTRACTOR: Tibbetts Farm LLC 

PO Box 456 

Alfred, ME 04002 DRAFT



Page 5 of 5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said INHABITANTS OF THE TOWN OF LYMAN has caused this 

agreement to be signed and sealed by its Select Board hereunto duly authorized, and TIBBETTS FARM LLC 

has caused this Agreement to be signed and sealed by TIBBETTS FARM LLC hereunto duly authorized, the 

day and date first above written.  

_________________________________ 

Ralph Blackington, Chair 

_________________________________ 

Thomas Hatch, Vice Chair 

_________________________________ 

Jessica Picard 

_________________________________ 

Victoria Gavel 

_________________________________ 

Amber Swett 

_________________________________ 

Date 

________________________________ ________________________________ 

Contractor Witness 

________________________________ ________________________________ 

Position  Date 

DRAFT



TOWN OF LYMAN 
SPECIAL TOWN MEETING WARRANT 

TO KATRINA RANDALL, RESIDENT IN THE TOWN OF LYMAN, COUNTY OF YORK, AND THE 

STATE OF MAINE. 

GREETINGS: In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify and warn the inhabitants of 

the Town of Lyman, qualified to vote in Town affairs, to meet at the Lyman Town Hall on Tuesday October 

3, 2023 at 7:00 PM and then there to act on articles numbered 1 through 2 as set out below. The election of 

Moderator will take place at 6:50 P.M. 

ARTICLE 1: To choose a Moderator by written ballot to preside at said meeting. 

ARTICLE 2:  To see if the Town will vote to appropriate from surplus the sum of $134,746 for the salaries 

and benefits of the separate and distinct administrative positions of the Town Clerk and the 

Select Board Clerk.  

Current Fiscal 

Years Budget 

Selectmen’s  

recommendation 

Budget Committees 

recommendation 

$0.00 $ $ 

         Selectmen’s vote:          Budget Committee’s Vote: 

Given under our hand at Lyman, Maine this ___  day of _________, A.D., 2023. 

______ 

Ralph “Rusty” Blackington, Chair Thomas Hatch, Vice Chair 

____________ 

Jessica Picard Victoria Gavel  

Amber Swett 

DRAFT
ITEM #7: (e.) Vote Recommendations for Warrant Article 2



ORDER 

VOTED: That it be and is hereby Ordered that a Special Town Meeting of the Town of Lyman 

be held on October 3rd,  2023, and that an attested copy of this order be placed on file with the 

Town Clerk of the Town of Lyman.  

Given under our hands this  5th day of September, 2023 at Lyman Maine 

______ 

Ralph Blackington; Chair Thomas Hatch; Vice Chair 

____________ 

Jessica Picard Victoria Gavel 

Amber Swett 

COPY
ITEM #7: (f.) Order for Special Town Meeting



COPY
ITEM #7: (g.) YMCA Contract



COPY



COPY



COPY



COPY



COPY




